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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, good

          3  morning. As I hope everyone by now knows, I am

          4  Kathryn Freed, I am the Chairperson of the Committee

          5  on Contracts, and I am going to begin today by

          6  recognizing my colleagues who are present today, and

          7  the first person I am going to recognize is a new

          8  old person, if that makes sense, he is Vincent

          9  Ignizio, who is the Administrator of the 51st

         10  District, he is either the acting or the interim

         11  appointee, and he is the new Steve Fiala. So, he is

         12  taking Steve Fiala's place. So, we welcome you to

         13  your first hearing and look forward to working with

         14  you.

         15                 Okay, he was the first person to my

         16  left, but now it is Christine Quinn, who just walked

         17  in, who is a Council Member for Manhattan, and Pedro

         18  Espada from the Bronx.

         19                 And on the phone with his back to us,

         20  who will be here in a second, is Gifford Miller, who

         21  is the prime sponsor of the Good Wood bill, that we

         22  are going to be discussing today.

         23                 So, today we are holding a hearing on

         24  Intro. No. 784-A, which is a local law to amend the

         25  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in
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          2  relation to City contracts involving the purchase of

          3  wood products and materials.

          4                 In May this Committee had a hearing

          5  on this legislation, we received a great deal of

          6  testimony, very long hearing, and both in favor and

          7  in opposition to the bill.

          8                 Since that hearing, the staff of this

          9  Committee has reviewed the testimony that we

         10  received, has met with a number of advocates to

         11  discuss possible amendments. So, we will be

         12  introducing an A version today. The A version of

         13  this bill addresses many of the initial concerns

         14  that were raised. Specifically, Intro. 784-A, now

         15  narrows the scope of the bill to require that

         16  certified wood be used for building materials and

         17  furniture articles.

         18                 In addition, the bill has been

         19  amended to include definitions of those two

         20  categories. It includes wood products certified by a

         21  forest certifier as an environmentally preferable

         22  material, and it clearly articulates that nothing in

         23  the legislation shall be construed as limiting or

         24  increasing the prohibition of purchases of tropical

         25  hardwoods stated in Section 165 of the State Finance
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          2  Law.

          3                 Let me also mention that several

          4  recent amendments have also been made to this bill

          5  which are not included in the bill that was sent to

          6  our invited witnesses, in fact we just finished

          7  discussion some of these yesterday.

          8                 These amendments include stating that

          9  the requirements of this legislation shall not

         10  apply, that there is a substantial cost to the City

         11  in attempting to procure certified wood products.

         12                 I should point out that this

         13  essentially tracks the state language.

         14                 Amending the bill to require that

         15  forest certifiers abide by a list of standards that

         16  is now stated in Section D, Subdivision 2; and,

         17  finally, requiring that the legislation will only

         18  apply to those contracts that exceed the small

         19  purchase limits as articulated in Section 314 of the

         20  Charter.

         21                 Copies of these new amendments are

         22  available for anyone who wishes to review them.

         23                 Please be aware that because of the

         24  number of witnesses present today, the Committee

         25  will be imposing a three-minute time limit on those
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          2  who wish to testify.

          3                 Before we hear testimony, let me

          4  remind you that it is the practice of this Committee

          5  to swear in all witnesses.

          6                 So, let me just say I am glad that we

          7  continue to take this legislation up, I think it is

          8  a very necessary piece of legislation and it is

          9  always very important that the City of New York have

         10  a stated policy that is environmentally sound and

         11  that we can send a message to other municipalities

         12  throughout the United States about how important it

         13  is to try and protect our tropical hardwoods in

         14  whole growth forests.

         15                 So, okay, we have also just been

         16  joined by Council Member William Perkins from

         17  Manhattan, and before we go forward, the prime

         18  sponsor of the bill, Gifford Miller, had wanted to

         19  make some remarks.

         20                 Gifford.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you,

         22  Madam Chair.

         23                 Let me just say very clearly that I

         24  appreciate your leadership on this issue and the

         25  work that has been done on the part of the staff,
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          2  Andrew Newman. I just wanted to say that I

          3  appreciate everyone who is coming to testify here

          4  and make clear that the intention of the Council

          5  here is to ensure that the people of the City of New

          6  York have the confidence that when this government

          7  is purchasing wood products, they are purchasing

          8  wood products that have been grown in a sustainable

          9  fashion and not ones that have been contributing to

         10  the environmental degradation of this earth.

         11                 This is an ongoing process, we have

         12  been looking at a different draft here than

         13  previously we looked at.

         14                 I know that there has been an attempt

         15  to try to set out guidelines and rules in selecting,

         16  certifying organizations who will meet the standards

         17  that the Council and the City feel provide us with a

         18  degree of assurance that we have and I wanted to

         19  just assure everyone that this is an ongoing process

         20  and the purpose for having these hearings is

         21  actually to listen to what your testimony is and how

         22  we can move forward.

         23                 So, you know, we expect that this

         24  language will change some and in response to some of

         25  the comments that we received today as we move
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          2  forward, and we are going to continue the process of

          3  working collaboratively with all elements and

          4  everyone who comes to testify in order to fashion

          5  the best language possible but remain committed to

          6  the goal of ensuring that the citizens of this City

          7  can have some knowledge that their government is

          8  doing the right thing. And in joining with home

          9  depot and many others in the industry who are

         10  already moving in this direction.

         11                 So, I want to thank you, and, of

         12  course, I want to thank Speaker Vallone, who is

         13  actually the prime sponsor of this legislation, for

         14  his leadership on this subject.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 I, too, also want to thank my

         18  counsel, to my right, Andrew Newman, who has done a

         19  great job on this, and also Regina Poreda, our

         20  financial analyst who has been working on this.

         21                 So, I am going to call our first

         22  panel. Ahmad Husseini, from the Canadian Standards

         23  Association. You can come up to the desk.

         24                 Joel Newheimer, from Forest Products,

         25  Association of Canada; and Tom Tevlin, from the
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          2  Forest Alliance of British Columbia.

          3                 Okay, before you start to testify,

          4  let me remind you, it's three minutes each, and if

          5  you would each raise your right hand, please, and do

          6  you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth and

          7  nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. HUSSEINI: Yes.

          9                 MR. NEWHEIMER: Yes.

         10                 MR. TEVLIN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: As you testify,

         12  just state your name and position before you start

         13  and then proceed.

         14                 MR. HUSSEINI: Good morning,

         15  everybody. Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you,

         16  Counselors.

         17                 My name is Ahmad Husseini. I am the

         18  Manager of Quality and Environment Program, at the

         19  Canadian Standards Association, and I am coming here

         20  to testify on behalf of CSA, Canadian Standards

         21  Association.

         22                 I have copies of this testimony that

         23  is being circulated I think now. Thank you for the

         24  opportunity to present to you today. I am here on

         25  behalf of the Canadian Standards Association, an
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          2  independent not-for-profit development agency

          3  accredited to develop national standards of Canada.

          4                 CSA published Canada's national

          5  standard for sustainable forest management Z809 in

          6  1996, using a balanced matrix of technical committee

          7  experts or members, representing a range of

          8  interests, including environmentalists, government,

          9  industry, consumers and academia, since that time

         10  nearly 13 million acres of forest land has been

         11  certified to the standard, making CSA the leading

         12  sustainable forestry certification scheme in Canada.

         13  Canada's National Standard utilizes a continual

         14  improvement approach, and requires an intensive

         15  public participation process, practical

         16  demonstration of sustainable forest management

         17  practices, and management commitment.

         18                 Certification basically to the

         19  Standard requires a third-party audit, third-party

         20  audit which is done by specific registrars,

         21  conducted by an independent, accredited Registrar.

         22                 In response to the requests to link

         23  the National Standard for SFM to the consumers and

         24  let them make responsible purchasing decisions, CSA

         25  has now created the Forest Products Marking Program.
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          2  This program involves the tracking of certified

          3  forest products from the time they leave the forest

          4  until they reach the final destination, such as a

          5  retailer's shelves. Once a company undergoes a

          6  successful third-party to verify that they are in

          7  conformance with this chain-of-custody requirements,

          8  which includes demonstration of receipt of forest

          9  products certified under this Canadian Standard for

         10  Sustainable Forest Management, they can then have

         11  the opportunity to apply the CSA SFM, which is

         12  Sustainable Forest Management Mark.

         13                 This standard is rigorous, has one of

         14  the most intensive public participation requirements

         15  of any standard in the world, and requires

         16  on-the-ground performance. It is Canada's National

         17  Standard and now includes three components, three

         18  basic components: The standard, chain of custody,

         19  and the label to identify these products to the

         20  consumers. With a supply of 13 million acres of

         21  forest land, this standard offers a credible source

         22  of certified, labeled products that could

         23  significantly assist the City of New York in meeting

         24  their green procurement goals, and we therefore ask

         25  that you include the standard in your procurement
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          2  policy.

          3                 And basically just one line to end

          4  this thing, I think your changes to the Intro. Bill

          5  784-A is acceptable to us for this to apply the

          6  standard.

          7                 We feel that we could meet the

          8  requirements of the changes in this Intro. Bill.

          9                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         11                 Next.

         12                 Are there any questions?

         13                 MR. TEVLIN: Thank you, Madam Chair,

         14  members of the Council. My name is Tom Tevlin, and

         15  I'm I am the President of the Forest Alliance of BC,

         16  based in Vancouver, Canada. We are an organization

         17  with a membership of some 10,000 citizens of British

         18  Columbia and other areas. We are sponsored by the

         19  British Columbia Forest Industry, but governed by an

         20  elected citizens board from across the province.

         21                 Our involvement with discussions

         22  around this bill have basically centered on the

         23  concept of inclusiveness. We have always felt very

         24  strongly that certification of forest products is a

         25  very positive development, and that you should
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          2  approach this issue on a hierarchial kind of basis

          3  where you acknowledge that forest products are in

          4  and of themselves a valuable environmental

          5  commodity, and that certified forest products are

          6  products that can be verified as to have come from

          7  sustainably managed forests.

          8                 We have always thought very strongly

          9  that focusing on one particular certification brand

         10  was not helpful. We appreciate that that amendment

         11  to the current bill has been made and we would

         12  congratulate you on that improvement.

         13                 We also congratulate you on a couple

         14  of other improvements, as well. Very quickly the

         15  rider in connection with cost and availability,

         16  primarily.

         17                 However, I did want to bring about

         18  one caution, and that's a caution primarily in

         19  connection with chain of custody.

         20                 I have the luxury of coming from

         21  British Columbia where our land ownership patterns

         22  allow chain of custody to be much more easily

         23  accomplished than some of my friends in some other

         24  jurisdictions, for example, your jurisdiction of the

         25  United States, where chain of custody is much less
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          2  easily obtainable because of ownership patterns. And

          3  I just want to very clearly raise that issue with

          4  you, that while a Canadian may be able to support

          5  the concept of chain of custody, as you have drafted

          6  it. It's not universally obtainable, and I think it

          7  is very important that you be well aware of that.

          8  So, that is a very strong qualification that I wish

          9  to deliver in connection with my support of the

         10  current bill.

         11                 The second, perhaps more minor point

         12  that I would like to make is in connection with

         13  aboriginal rights. In British Columbia the

         14  treaty-making process is in fact underway, has been

         15  underway for some ten years. Much of the treaties in

         16  Canada were settled about a century ago, but in

         17  British Columbia for a whole range of geopolitical

         18  reasons those treaties were not settled, they are

         19  now being settled, so there is a whole aboriginal

         20  rights issue in connection with British Columbia

         21  that I would like you to be aware of, and that if

         22  this bill were to go to an additional draft, I think

         23  you would want to spend more time in connection with

         24  the chain of custody issue, not from my perspective,

         25  but from the perspective of others, and also in
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          2  connection with the aboriginal rights point that is

          3  made in the criteria.

          4                 Having said that, however, I would

          5  want to say that I generally support the criteria, I

          6  think one through nine are good, sound principles.

          7  Let me leave you with this one last point, though, I

          8  think that if you accomplish criteria 1 through 8,

          9  that is all the sustainable forest management

         10  criteria. I think criterion number 9, which is the

         11  chain of custody criterion, becomes less important

         12  because of the fact that you have made your

         13  commitments in forest, and practices in forest

         14  management on the ground.

         15                 So, finally, I would just like to say

         16  thank you very much for your willingness to hear my

         17  testimony.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 Next, please.

         21                 MR. NEWHEIMER: Good morning. My name

         22  is Joel Newheimer, and I am the Director of

         23  International Affairs at the Forest Products

         24  Association of Canada. We are the national

         25  association representing forest products
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          2  manufacturers from coast-to-coast in Canada, I

          3  thank, Madam Chair, and Council Members, for the

          4  invitation to speak to you again this morning.

          5                 Because you have modified this bill

          6  so recently, I'm just going to go from some quick

          7  talking points that I have written down this

          8  morning.

          9                 I, too, note some very significant

         10  changes for the positive in my mind, in this bill,

         11  and I congratulate you on them, and I am still

         12  speaking in opposition this morning, but with one

         13  modification I could easily support what you now

         14  have proposed in this legislation.

         15                 We have a significant interest in

         16  this bill, given that Canadian manufacturers provide

         17  34 percent of the construction wood that's used in

         18  the United States, and for that reason we, too,

         19  encourage you to make this bill as inclusive as

         20  possible, and not have it be exclusive in any way

         21  whatsoever.

         22                 I mean this is to make the bill as

         23  practical as possible to implement. If you want to

         24  be buying wood products from a sustainable managed

         25  forest, I think you want to make the implementation
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          2  of that as practical as possible and avoid limiting

          3  your choice in the marketplace to any extent at all.

          4                 If this bill is meant to encourage

          5  sustainable forestry, I urge you not to penalize

          6  those who have chosen one equally valid means of

          7  certification over another, and I think you have

          8  gone a long way to meeting that, but there might be

          9  one aspect of it that you might want to leave out

         10  for now that I will get to in just a second.

         11                 I think that you should recognize in

         12  whatever systems you ultimately recognize all

         13  third-party independently verified certification

         14  systems as demonstrating sustainable forest

         15  management practices. As long as it is independently

         16  third-party verified, I think you've really got what

         17  you are looking for.

         18                 So, as I look at the revised bill, I,

         19  too, much like Tom just before me, think that eight

         20  of the nine criterion now have here on page seven on

         21  the revised bill that I have in front of me, are

         22  very good. And I think if you can find somebody who

         23  is going to deliver eight of those nine, then you

         24  have met your objective in this case.

         25                 I, too, have reservations about the
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          2  ninth criterion that you have laid out, the one on

          3  chain of custody, and from my perspective it is

          4  because I think we are still in the early days, as

          5  far as this component of certification is concerned.

          6                 And it's true, there are those who

          7  can provide that for you at this point, including

          8  the FSC and CSA, as you have heard this morning, but

          9  I think it is still early days to include that as a

         10  necessary criterion at this point. So, in my mind,

         11  if you were to leave that out at this point and

         12  revisit it at some point later in the future, after

         13  you have given this some additional time to evolve,

         14  I would be able to support this bill as it currently

         15  stands, and I think I will leave it at that.

         16                 I don't have a text for you this

         17  morning, but I did bring the latest four

         18  certification results of all four systems currently

         19  being used across Canada with me. I will leave that

         20  with the Sergeant-At-Arms for yourself, and that

         21  includes member companies of our association that

         22  are certified either to ISO 14001, the Forest

         23  Stewardship Council principles, the Canadian

         24  Standards Association standard, or the Sustainable

         25  Forestry Initiative out of the US, and with that, I
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          2  thank you very much for your time and your

          3  consideration, and I hope that you will be able to

          4  make that slight modification that is requested.

          5                 Thanks very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

          7  Please leave us the information, the wording.

          8                 On another note, we have been joined

          9  by Councilwoman Eva Moskowitz.

         10                 Are there any questions?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Let me ask a

         12  very quick question.

         13                 Are you saying, the last witness, are

         14  you saying that any - any - third-party certifier

         15  you think is acceptable? I mean, as long as a

         16  third-party -- is your testimony as long as a

         17  third-party certifier, no matter what their

         18  criteria, that they are acceptable? You can't

         19  imagine a situation in which there is a bad

         20  third-party certifier?

         21                 I mean, because it seems to me that

         22  what you are saying, certainly there are people who

         23  are undertaking these practices because it's easy

         24  for them, or because it makes economic sense for

         25  them, and we want to encourage people to avoid bad
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          2  practices, and there certainly would be an economic

          3  incentive for there to be a third-party certifier,

          4  you know, and there are certainly certifiers in the

          5  third world and in other places who don't meet the

          6  criteria, even without the chain of custody that you

          7  are talking about, and, of course, everyone can

          8  argue about what protection of biological diversity

          9  means, and people just disagree about that. But you

         10  are saying that you can't imagine that there would

         11  be any third-party certifier which would not be

         12  acceptable?

         13                 MR. NEWHEIMER: Well, I am thinking of

         14  the certification systems that are currently

         15  available for use in Canada, and that includes the

         16  four that I mentioned that are in the summary table

         17  that I left with you. And I think as long as you had

         18  third-party verification of any of those four, I

         19  think you are well on your way to meeting the first

         20  eight of the nine criteria that you have laid out

         21  now as meeting the objectives that you are out to

         22  meet in this bill.

         23                 So, I am thinking in the Canadian

         24  context, I am thinking of the options that are

         25  available in Canada, if you use one of those four

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  programs, third-party verified, I think you are well

          3  on your way to meeting the first eight of the nine

          4  criteria that you have got there now. And I think

          5  chain of custody is something that will be very

          6  realistic over time. But I mean, these things really

          7  take a bit of time to implement when you think of

          8  going theoretical to the practical on the ground in

          9  the forests. In that case I am just basically

         10  encouraging you to give people who are going to be

         11  providing the products that you hope to buy some

         12  more time to make it possible to provide chain of

         13  custody.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay. Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Just

         17  quickly, why is it easier to track the chain of

         18  custody in Canada, and is America having problems

         19  with it?

         20                 MS. NEWHEIMER: Madam Chair, it is a

         21  function of land-holding patterns. Leaving out

         22  Canada and the US, which are quite different in

         23  their land-holding patterns, if you looked at a

         24  country, for example, like Finland, which may be an

         25  extreme case where there are thousands and thousands
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          2  of land-holders who pool their product together in

          3  order to put it to market, and, so, chain of custody

          4  ends up going through a very, very fine filter down

          5  at the land-holder end.

          6                 I mean, Canada and the US kind of run

          7  along a similar continuum. In Canada, in British

          8  Columbia, we have one land-holder virtually, and

          9  that is the state, 95 percent of our land is

         10  state-owned, and so chain of custody really is much

         11  easier, just from a legal perspective.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         13                 Okay, thank you very much.

         14                 Our next panel will consist of Susan

         15  Holmes, from the Sierra Club, and Hank Cauley from

         16  the Forest Stewardship Council. And by the way, if

         17  you hear the sound going off, that means your three

         18  minutes are up.

         19                 Okay, if you could come up. If you

         20  have testimony, please hand it to the

         21  Sergeant-At-Arms.

         22                 If you would both raise your right

         23  hands, please?

         24                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

         25  whole truth and nothing but the truth?
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          2                 MR. CAULEY: Yes.

          3                 MS. HOLMES: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, Susan, good

          5  to see you again.

          6                 Your mike is not on.

          7                 MS. HOLMES: Well, I want to thank you

          8  all again on behalf of the Sierra Club for all of

          9  the work that you have done, and the staff of

         10  Gifford Miller, the Speaker's Office, the Speaker,

         11  of the members of this Committee, Kathryn Freed,

         12  Council Member Moskowitz and Council Member Quinn.

         13                 We are really very delighted that

         14  this legislation is still moving forward before the

         15  City Council, and we are here in strong support of

         16  the goals and intentions of the legislation. As you

         17  know, I was here before in my capacity as a

         18  professional staff person for the Sierra Club, I am

         19  now here as a volunteer for the Sierra Club and I am

         20  working for an organization called Earth Justice

         21  Legal Defense in Washington, D.C.

         22                 But I wanted to, in addition to

         23  thanking you, and saying we do support the goals of

         24  the legislation, also explain some concerns that we

         25  have about the legislation as amended. And I will
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          2  even say a few nice things. First of all, we are

          3  happy about the amendments restricting the bill's

          4  application to building material and furniture

          5  articles. We think this is a practical revision that

          6  makes a lot of sense. We think expanding the

          7  definition of environmentally preferable building

          8  materials to include wood is also a very sound

          9  amendment.

         10                 But let me quickly go through my

         11  concerns about the bill and I want to say at the

         12  outset that there will be other folks from the

         13  Sierra Club that are going to be providing more

         14  testimony with respect to the overall bill that I am

         15  going to focus down like a laser on our principle

         16  concern.

         17                 First of all, the amendments to

         18  section two, which replace the 1999 principles and

         19  criteria of the Forest Stewardship Council with

         20  forest management standards, indeed do incorporate

         21  some of the values of those standards, but are too

         22  broad, too general, too vague and open-ended to be

         23  adequate to truly protect forests. These standards

         24  are similar to the principles and criteria but they

         25  lack the scope and detail and leave out really
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          2  fundamental components, like, for example, principle

          3  9 of the Forest Stewardship principles and criteria,

          4  which is the protection of high conservation valued

          5  forests. And let me just use an example to explain

          6  what I mean.

          7                 In Section 2, if you can look at

          8  number five, the protection of biological diversity,

          9  soil and water quality, many certification systems

         10  that the Sierra Club and the major environmental

         11  groups opposed actually claimed they already do

         12  this. What we believe needs to happen is have the

         13  specific language that is in the Forest Stewardship

         14  Council principles and criteria to flush something

         15  out, flush this point out, for example, what is

         16  missing in that point are prohibitions on

         17  conversions of diverse natural forests, simplified

         18  plantations, reductions in chemical use and

         19  prohibitions in the release of genetically modified

         20  organisms in the environment.

         21                 Let me just, if I may, have just a

         22  couple more seconds, I have two other concerns. So

         23  that gives a good example of how we think this is

         24  too vague, how we think we need to have more detail

         25  and, in fact, we believe that the original language
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          2  of the following clarifying changes, and let me just

          3  point out here I am looking at the original language

          4  that was stricken, adherence to the principles and

          5  criteria of the Forest Stewardship Council as

          6  amended in 1999, we believe that the best way to

          7  move forward with this bill would be to stay the

          8  adherence to the full principles and criteria of the

          9  Forest Stewardship Council as amended in 1999, or

         10  the equivalent requirements of other similar

         11  organizations, the addition of the word full before

         12  "the principles" and then also adding the word and

         13  in front of point number two, and "conducting annual

         14  on-the-ground audits."

         15                 If you were to strike that language,

         16  we would need to have much more detail and much more

         17  specifics in terms of the description of the

         18  principles and criteria in the bill.

         19                 We have two other issues that we

         20  would like to raise. On page number eight of the

         21  amended version, the language "relating to the

         22  mapping and identification of endangered forests"

         23  has been removed. Many of the national groups who

         24  join together in a large coalition to support this

         25  bill believe that this is a critical component, more
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          2  and more information is coming out that was not

          3  available in the past about the location of the

          4  mapping of endangered forests. We believe that this

          5  gesture to looking and examining that information in

          6  the future is an important component that needs to

          7  remain in the bill.

          8                 And, finally, the third issue which

          9  you can find on page number six relates to when the

         10  bill can be waived. We believe there should be a

         11  clarifying amendment. Right now the bill, we believe

         12  that these changes are adequate but they need

         13  definition to who can actually waive the bill.

         14                 It says here the agency may waive the

         15  bill, we believe that that needs to be focused on

         16  either the chief of the agency or a specific

         17  accountable body within the agency so we can avoid

         18  the scenario of having individuals in the agency

         19  making these decisions ad hoc. We think it should be

         20  focused on one specific person.

         21                 I want to add again that on behalf of

         22  the Sierra Club we are very, very supportive of all

         23  the goals and all the hard work that have gone into

         24  this. Personally, many of us have worked for years

         25  and years to bring this legislation to this point.
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          2  We look forward to working with you to amend the

          3  legislation further to strengthen it and to make it

          4  stronger so that we can protect the forest and those

          5  values that we care about.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

          7                 MR. CAULEY: Good morning. I am Hank

          8  Cauley. I am the Executive Director of the Forest

          9  Stewardship Council here in the United States. Thank

         10  you for inviting me to speak this morning, and,

         11  first, congratulations to the City on bringing the

         12  legislation to this point.

         13                 But like Susan, I have some concerns

         14  about some recent modifications to the legislation.

         15                 Just to reiterate what I said back in

         16  May, the Forest Stewardship Council is the world

         17  leader in terms of forest certification. Over 60

         18  million of acres of FSC certified florists are

         19  global. 8.3 million of those acres are here in the

         20  United States, and 700,000 acres are certified in

         21  New York.

         22                 The FSC is the most rigorous

         23  certification system in the world and that really

         24  gets to my three points. The first thing that the

         25  legislation, you know, as worded now, has
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          2  third-party in there as being required.

          3                 Third-party inspections are necessary

          4  but insufficient conditions to really achieve what I

          5  think the New York City Council wants to achieve.

          6  You know, it is really all about the standards, and

          7  the Forest Stewardship standards are the most

          8  rigorous out there and that's why the prior

          9  language, specifying the Forest Stewardship Council

         10  was, you know, something we obviously favored, in

         11  the new language we feel it is just too broad.

         12                 Without going into all the detail

         13  that Susan went into, I would also reiterate on

         14  numbers one through eight, you know, it is number

         15  five that really raises the most concern.

         16                 The Forest Stewardship Council

         17  principles and criteria, you can see this list,

         18  which is ten items long, goes into a lot of detail

         19  about what number five is all about. And, you know,

         20  issues such as the minimization of chemicals, you

         21  know, what do we do about plantations, and the

         22  prohibition of genetically modified organisms I

         23  think are critically important.

         24                 And the last point I want to bring up

         25  is on chain of custody. You know, without a chain of
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          2  custody system, a program just is not credible to

          3  the general public. You know, the social contract

          4  between the timber industry and the general public

          5  has been badly frayed. The only way to rebuild that

          6  is to track a product from the forest floor to the

          7  retail floor.

          8                 Number nine I think can be

          9  strengthened further in terms of chain of custody,

         10  but I think it is very important for the credibility

         11  of all programs that the chain of custody language

         12  stay in there.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Thank you

         15  very much. We will definitely take your concerns

         16  under consideration.

         17                 Any questions? Okay, great.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Let me just

         19  note, Madam Chair, I mean, I think for all the

         20  witnesses, there hasn't been a huge amount of time

         21  to study this bill for any of us in this

         22  modification. We certainly welcome additional

         23  written specific comments on how to, you know,

         24  change and modify the language in order to address

         25  people's concerns, the more specific of course is
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          2  the better for our staff and ourselves to be able to

          3  do it.

          4                 MR. CAULEY: Thank you. We plan on

          5  submitting that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Great.

          7                 MS. HOLMES: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, the next

          9  panel will consist of Richard, I think it is Coombe,

         10  from the Watershed Agricultural Council.  I may have

         11  mispronounced that or misread it.

         12                 Rita Ferris from the Northeastern

         13  Retail Lumber Association, and Joseph C. Murray,

         14  from the Suburban Timber Forest for Tomorrow.

         15                 Okay, if you could all raise your

         16  right hands, please.

         17                 And do you swear to tell the truth,

         18  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. COOMBE: I do.

         20                 MS. FERRIS: I do.

         21                 MR. MURRAY: I do.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         23  And, again, please state your name and title before

         24  you testify.

         25                 MR. COOMBE: The order we were called?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Sure.

          3                 MR. COOMBE: Okay.

          4                 Madam Chair, my name is Richard

          5  Coombe. It is indeed an honor to testify at the

          6  Committee on Contracts of the City Council of the

          7  City of New York at the public hearing on proposed

          8  number 784-A.

          9                 I am Chair and CEO of the Watershed

         10  Agricultural Council of the New York City Watershed,

         11  Inc. The mission of our 501C3 is to assist the

         12  agricultural and forestry communities in adopting

         13  operational and management techniques to protect

         14  water quality as well as enhance economic

         15  competitiveness and viability.

         16                 We operate a nationally-recognized

         17  source water protection program which develops and

         18  implements whole forest plans and whole farm plans

         19  in the New York City watershed.

         20                 New York City widely recognized that

         21  well-managed forests and farms are preferred land

         22  use to subdivisions based septics for watershed

         23  protection. Forests cover more than three-quarters

         24  of the privately-owned land area in the

         25  Catskill/Delaware watershed, which is a source for
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          2  approximately 90 percent of New York City's drinking

          3  water.

          4                 Well-managed forests provide the most

          5  beneficial land cover for water quality protection

          6  while offering a viable rural economy for watershed

          7  communities.

          8                 The Watershed Forestry Program is a

          9  voluntary incentive-based locally led partnership

         10  program established in 1997 to help protect New York

         11  City's water supply from forest-based pollution.

         12                 Our program is designed to connect

         13  the day-to-day business decisions of forest

         14  landowners, foresters, and loggers to water quality

         15  protection. Primary funding is provided by New York

         16  City Department of Environmental Protection with

         17  substantial contributions from the USDA Forest

         18  Service and others. Over 20 organizations partner

         19  with our program to deliver high quality water to

         20  your constituents.

         21                 The goals of this bill are indeed

         22  laudable. Unfortunately, the implication is a market

         23  opportunity for the watershed forestry industry is

         24  being removed just at a time when adverse economic

         25  conditions are resulting in further fragmentation of
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          2  our watershed forest land.

          3                 High real property taxes, low forest

          4  product prices and urban sprawl pressures are

          5  threatening your forested watershed. Our forestry

          6  program is committed to keep well-managed forest

          7  land.

          8                 Your bill requires only FSC certified

          9  wood will be able to be purchased by New York City.

         10  Unfortunately, little watershed forest land is

         11  producing certified wood products, let alone

         12  FSC-certified products.

         13                 Over 30,000 acres, and expanding

         14  rapidly, of watershed forest land, have our forest

         15  management plans in place. Virtually none of this

         16  land is FSC certified. Yet our management plans are

         17  nationally recognized for their watershed protection

         18  component and overall forest sustainability.

         19                 A sound approach would be either no

         20  certification, or a broader, more inclusive

         21  certification, including FSC, SFI, Tree Farm and our

         22  own whole forest plan.

         23                 The bill favors recycled plastics

         24  over wood products.

         25                 This is a mistake. Numerous
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          2  scientific studies, including the Quabin,

          3  Massachusetts Watershed study by the Autobahn

          4  Society, have shown that a well-managed harvested

          5  forest yields the largest quantity and quality of

          6  water per acre. Our forests need a market for low

          7  grade wood products and the outstanding high quality

          8  hard woods we produce.

          9                 I would urge the City Council to

         10  expand your certification eligibility and to include

         11  the use of New York City watershed forest products,

         12  produced from land with a whole forest plan in

         13  place. This would make our watershed forest more

         14  profitable and help keep your water clean.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, hopefully

         16  you notice that we have made two of the changes you

         17  were talking about.

         18                 We no longer specifically require the

         19  Forest Stewardship Council, we have broadened that.

         20  And we have added that we believe that certified

         21  wood is environmentally preferable. So, I think

         22  those meet two of your concerns.

         23                 MR. COOMBE: Could I respond for one

         24  moment?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Sure.
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          2                 MR. COOMBE: Just I am still concerned

          3  about the chain of custody issue. I just came from

          4  my farm and forest down on this hot day, and thank

          5  you for allowing us to speak, but we are a small,

          6  fragmented forest, 25 acres, up to a few hundred

          7  acres per unit, and it makes it very difficult to

          8  have the chain of custody. I just would like to go

          9  on record there.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: All right, thank

         12  you.

         13                 Next.

         14                 MS. FERRIS: Chairwoman Freed, and

         15  distinguished members of the Committee on Contracts,

         16  thank you, again, for the opportunity to testify on

         17  Introduction 784-A.

         18                 My name is Rita Ferris, and I am the

         19  Director of Legislative and Regulatory Affairs for

         20  the Northeastern Retail Lumber Dealers Association.

         21                 I am testifying on behalf of 56 of

         22  our members that have businesses in the metropolitan

         23  area. As stated in our name, we are independent

         24  family-owned businesses. Many of these businesses

         25  have been operating in the City for nearly a
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          2  century.

          3                 Lumber is the main product that we

          4  sell, and we are very dedicated to selling this in a

          5  responsible manner, not only to secure our supply

          6  for the future, but because it is the right thing to

          7  do, and, in fact, the Association on behalf of our

          8  members, has invested substantial time and money to

          9  formulate a wood certification policy, which is

         10  outlined on the coversheet of my testimony.

         11                 The Northeastern Retail Lumber

         12  Dealers Association is opposed to Introduction 784

         13  as currently written. While the amendments to the

         14  bill have been made, they didn't address the

         15  Association's substantial and initial concern about

         16  the chain of custody requirement, and rather than

         17  reiterate those concerns, which were detailed at the

         18  last public hearing, I resubmitted a copy of my

         19  testimony from the last time.

         20                 I did just want to make one point at

         21  this hearing, which is to revisit what the real goal

         22  of certification is.

         23                 The declaration of finding and intent

         24  states that it is to enable the City to know whether

         25  its procurement of wood product is originating from
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          2  a responsibly managed forest. This is an absolutely

          3  commendable and appropriate goal, but the

          4  Association believes that the impact of the bill's

          5  intention is dramatically cut short by the chain of

          6  custody requirement.

          7                 Just a couple of facts to consider is

          8  that 55 percent of the lumber that is utilized in

          9  the Northeast comes from Canada, where FSC and

         10  FSC-like systems, are not widely implemented. The

         11  rest of the lumber that we use, the majority of

         12  that, comes from the United States where only two to

         13  five percent of -- and I am saying FSC as an example

         14  because of the chain of custody, at this current

         15  time FSC is the only one that has that, so I realize

         16  you took it out but it is the one that qualifies at

         17  the moment.

         18                 So, when enacting a procurement

         19  policy that is really going to make a big bang, we

         20  think by taking out the chain of custody requirement

         21  and relying on the third-party certification, that

         22  verification, it is going to give the City a lot

         23  more bang for the policy.

         24                 There are several other systems that

         25  will meet scientifically-based requirements, such as
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          2  the sustainable forestry initiative, by the end of

          3  this year, that system will have ten times the

          4  amount of lumber available under the FSC program.

          5                 Even the Canadian Standards

          6  Association Program currently has one and a half

          7  times.

          8                 Thank you for listening to my

          9  testimony. I will be happy to answer questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         11                 Okay, next.

         12                 MR. MURRAY: My name is Joseph Murray,

         13  and I am the President and CEO of Forest for

         14  Tomorrow. My company represents the smaller

         15  companies, which ascertain lumber not only on Long

         16  Island, but the City of New York, northern New

         17  Jersey, Southern New York and Western Connecticut.

         18                 FSC has no classification --

         19  actually, none of the certification systems have a

         20  classification for timber, which is ascertained from

         21  these small types of wood lots.

         22                 What I think has failed to be

         23  realized is that one of the major trends in the

         24  lobbying and timber industries, that since 1970s, 70

         25  percent of federal lands have been closed to
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          2  logging.

          3                 One of the newest and most expanding

          4  sources of timber is from suburban sources.

          5                 Currently these suburban sources end

          6  up in landfills, waste, rot or on-site and are not

          7  entered into the commercial timber production. This

          8  is a major problem. As the wood lots get smaller and

          9  smaller, it becomes more difficult to track, keep

         10  and maintain records. Many of the suppliers are

         11  peripherally related to the forest products

         12  industry, if at all.

         13                 Land clearers, tree services,

         14  government entities land and home owners simply

         15  acting responsibly, the principle goal of

         16  environmentalism is a vital and essential trend that

         17  must be encouraged, developed and expanded.

         18                 In the New York area, if you drive

         19  out from a 75 mile radius from the City of New York,

         20  virtually no timber is cut for forestry-related

         21  reasons. Yet, over 100 million feet of timber is cut

         22  from this area. We have worked, and the New York

         23  State DEC has worked in what is called resource

         24  utilization. We are trying to encourage these small

         25  operators to get their timber into commercial
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          2  production. To exclude it, not only will explode

          3  landfills, which has been a principle problem

          4  already, and I don't need to say how difficult it is

          5  to open new landfills in any area, and not only

          6  that, but timber at this point in time would have to

          7  be replaced. Even if you use a certified source, the

          8  50 or 60 million feet that comes from the ineligible

          9  sources would have to be replaced, so that means

         10  that decertified sources would have to go out and

         11  cut an additional 50 million feet of timber on an

         12  annual basis. This is a serious problem.

         13                 We have developed an alternate

         14  system. It's called ALPS, and it stands for

         15  Alternative Log Procurement Sources, without this

         16  new classification, I believe FSC and the certified

         17  programs are doomed to failure.

         18                 ALPS includes all logs which are

         19  generated in the urban suburban land-clearing

         20  operation and salvaged for commercial production,

         21  rather than running up their landfills.

         22                 Companies such as mine that might

         23  produce millions of board feet of logs annually but

         24  are not eligible for certification would be

         25  penalized the most, and it is not my fault that FSC
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          2  and SFI have no classifications for our type of

          3  operations.

          4                 On Long Island alone, over 20 million

          5  board feet of timber is cut on an annual basis, most

          6  of you don't realize that. Shockingly, the net

          7  result is the diametric opposite of what FSC says it

          8  wants to promote. Instead these logs from

          9  non-removal resources are very often virgin, old

         10  growth timbers that end up in landfills at the

         11  taxpayer expense.

         12                 Incredibly, my company recovered

         13  nearly 100,000 board feet of pine timbers from

         14  highway projects, like expansion of the Long Island

         15  Expressway or projects in Queens and Staten Island.

         16                 Only as recently as two weeks ago we

         17  recovered 20,000 feet right in Queens.

         18                 Instead of preserving forest lands

         19  and reducing the rate of deforestation from

         20  responsible suppliers, the current FSC standards do

         21  just the reverse.

         22                 In this instance, FSC actually

         23  encourages waste and further deforestation. It

         24  raises the cost of timber purchase and detracts from

         25  local supplies and manufacturers in the City itself.
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          2                 The effect is anti-local business.

          3  Until this new and revised category is implemented,

          4  certification systems will be irrelevant for us.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I guess I have to

          6  ask you why you think the language that we now have,

          7  which talks about reclaimed wood products, that

          8  talks about wood that is legally salvaged, you know,

          9  buildings that are not historically significant,

         10  dead, diseased or nuisance trees from urban, private

         11  and government properties, usable wood safely

         12  reclaimed or diverted from landfills, wood

         13  by-products from secondary manufacturers and

         14  discarded pallets, wouldn't most of what you are

         15  discussing fall under that?

         16                 MR. MURRAY: Actually, the provision

         17  that was entered into was a result of this letter

         18  that I sent to the Council. But the point of my

         19  being here today is to generally voice opposition

         20  for any certification system.

         21                 We appreciate the fact that the

         22  Council can appreciate the amount of volumes which

         23  are now penetrated in the suburban environment

         24  throughout the Eastern United States. When one

         25  considers how many trees are cut for all these
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          2  variety of urban, suburban municipal sources, at

          3  this point it's nearly 90 percent of the trees that

          4  are cut.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, but wouldn't

          6  they come under this?

          7                 MR. MURRAY: No. Actually under the

          8  FSC certification plan they do not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But we are not

         10  using the FSC certification plan.

         11                 The wording that I just read to you

         12  is the wording that this bill contains, and it would

         13  seem to me everything you are talking about would

         14  come in under this language.

         15                 MR. MURRAY: From the way I read it, I

         16  didn't think it was inclusive enough.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What would you

         18  recommend?

         19                 MR. MURRAY: I don't have a prepared

         20  recommendation in terms of a substitute verbiage for

         21  that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. All right.

         23                 MR. MURRAY: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         25                 Okay, there are no questions. Thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 Okay, our next panel will be Dan

          4  Golub, from Assembly Speaker Richard Gottfried, and

          5  Michael Virga, from the American forest and Paper

          6  Association.

          7                 Okay, if both of you could raise your

          8  right hands, please. And do you swear to tell the

          9  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         10                 MR. GOLUB: I do.

         11                 MR. VIRGA: I do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, please

         13  proceed, and just state your name and position for

         14  the record.

         15                 MR. GOLUB: My name is Dan Golub, I am

         16  an aid to Assemblymember Richard Gottfried, not yet

         17  the Speaker, but I am fairly sure that he did not

         18  actually have a chance to look at the most recent

         19  amendments, but I hope it is somewhat clear what his

         20  principles are and we may wish to submit further

         21  testimony.

         22                 "My name is Richard N. Gottfried, I

         23  represent the 64th Assembly District in Manhattan

         24  which includes the neighborhoods of Chelsea,

         25  Clinton, Midtown, part of the Upper West Side and
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          2  Murray Hill. I regret that due to a previous

          3  commitment I am unable to appear before you in

          4  person.

          5                 I would like to thank you, Council

          6  Member Freed, for holding this hearing, and for the

          7  opportunity to submit testimony before your

          8  Committee today. I would also like to thank you,

          9  along with Council Members Miller and Vallone, for

         10  your commitment to this issue.

         11                 Concerned consumers have long sought

         12  the information they need to be able to make

         13  ecologically sound consumption decisions. Thanks to

         14  the organizing skills of groups like the Sierra

         15  Club, the National Resources Defense Council,

         16  Consumers Choice Council, the Rainforest Alliance,

         17  the National Wildlife Federation and Forest World,

         18  people can make these decisions for themselves.

         19                 With this legislation, New Yorkers

         20  would get the same level of responsible earth

         21  stewardship from their City governments.

         22                 Because of the good work of forest

         23  certifiers such as the Forest Stewardship Council,

         24  who, with their chain of custody certification

         25  procedure, verify that wood products do not come
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          2  from clearcut old growth forests, consumers can

          3  choose to purchase only responsibly forested wood

          4  products. New York City can and should do likewise.

          5                 This selective purchasing legislation

          6  would encourage and in most cases require the

          7  purchase of sustainably harvested and managed wood

          8  in New York City contracts, as well as encourage the

          9  use of recycled wood products.

         10                 New Yorkers would no longer be

         11  complicit in the depletion of the rainforests and

         12  other old-growth forests that are important to the

         13  future of our global climate.

         14                 When we build the parks and public

         15  spaces and facilities that make City living richer

         16  and fuller, we must guard against the possibility

         17  that we might be destroying the world's most

         18  endangered forests. It's important that the urban

         19  improvement projects we pursue for our constituents

         20  not be achieved at the expense of our grandchildren,

         21  who will ultimately pay the price for deforestation.

         22  New Yorkers would be better able to enjoy the park

         23  benches and bike paths of Central and Riverside

         24  Parks, when they are confident that those amenities

         25  are not provided at the expense of the Amazon and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Great Bear rainforests.

          3                 If Intro. 784-A becomes law, New York

          4  City will be in the forefront of the global movement

          5  to encourage responsibly managed forestation. It has

          6  become common practice for municipalities across the

          7  country to refuse to contract with companies who

          8  discriminate in their hiring, or permit exploitive

          9  working conditions. Most state and local governments

         10  demand a certain minimum standard of social

         11  responsibility from any companies with which they do

         12  business, but as commonplace as it seems now, this

         13  way of doing business was at one time thought

         14  unrealistic or inefficient, and it took bold

         15  leadership to establish these simple principles.

         16                 Now New York City has the opportunity

         17  to boldly lead again by demanding not just social,

         18  but also ecological responsibility from its business

         19  partners.

         20                 The issue of selective purchasing

         21  highlights the fact that the cause of environmental

         22  conservation need not be advanced at the expense of

         23  job creation or economic growth. And in fact, this

         24  law would be a great boon to the local and regional

         25  economy. By encouraging the use of recycled wood
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          2  products, the City will support recycling businesses

          3  in New York City. And since the FSC has certified

          4  many acres of New York State forestland, the City's

          5  contracting would likely encourage the sustainable

          6  timber industry at home instead of supporting those

          7  who clear-cut old growth forests.

          8                 We should be thankful for having such

          9  responsible constituents who make it possible to

         10  take a farsighted approach to policymaking, and we

         11  should take seriously our obligation to protect the

         12  natural resources that we all depend upon. Let us

         13  ensure that New Yorkers' tax dollars will from now

         14  on only encourage responsible forestation and

         15  ecological conservation.

         16                 Thank you again.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 Okay.

         20                 MR. VIRGA: My name is Michael Virga.

         21  I am with the American Forest and Paper Association,

         22  and I offer comments on the Association's behalf. AF

         23  & PA is the national trade organization for the

         24  forest products industry in the United States. Our

         25  members adhere to the sustainable forestry
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          2  initiative or the SFI, the largest sustainable

          3  forestry and certification system in the world. By

          4  the end of this year we will have over 80 million

          5  acres independently third-party certifieds of the

          6  SFI standard.

          7                 The SFI program has been endorsed by

          8  ten major labor unions, including the Carpenters,

          9  the Machinists, the Mine Workers, and Pace

         10  International. The SFI is a commitment to

         11  sustainable forestry, but it is also a commitment to

         12  sustainable communities and sustainable jobs.

         13                 The SFI program has been endorsed by

         14  15 state legislatures, including New York's and is

         15  supported by over 25 conservation and professional

         16  organizations.

         17                 For a variety of technical, political

         18  and legal reasons, a number of alternative forests

         19  certification systems have emerged, and it is

         20  unlikely that any single system will establish a

         21  monopoly in forestry certification.

         22                 These certification systems in

         23  combination have potential to supply large

         24  quantities of certified wood products from

         25  sustainably managed forests. They all play an
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          2  important role in the expansion of sustainable

          3  forestry worldwide.

          4                 I know this firsthand. I have

          5  extensive experience with the SFI, and the other

          6  leading certification programs, including the FSC.

          7                 I was born in New York City and

          8  raised on Long Island. I spent most of my career

          9  with Lyons Falls Pulp and Paper in Upstate New York.

         10  In 1998, I led the effort at Lyons Falls to attain

         11  FSC certification and we became the only printing

         12  and writing papermill in the world to be FSC

         13  certified, right here in New York. I also work with

         14  the Governor's Office and the DEC in '98 and '99 and

         15  the effort to certify 700,000 acres with New York's

         16  forest lands under the FSC. I chaired the Tree Farm

         17  Program in New York in the early nineties, and have

         18  been actively engaged in promoting forestry on

         19  private, non-industrial lands throughout my career.

         20                 Tree Farm will celebrate its 60th

         21  anniversary this year and is the oldest

         22  certification program in the world.

         23                 Tree Farm has certified 66,000 land

         24  owners, managing 25 million acres in the US, right

         25  here in New York there is 2,200 certified tree farms
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          2  that represent a million and a half acres.

          3                 I am a dirt forester, I have had the

          4  opportunity to view on-the-ground implementation of

          5  the major systems worldwide, FSC, SFI, CSA up in

          6  Canada, Tree Farm, and the Pan European Forestry

          7  Certification System in Europe. I know the systems.

          8  They all share a common objective. Better forestry

          9  on the ground and recognition in the marketplace are

         10  sources of good wood.

         11                 I strongly advocate the adoption of

         12  inclusive policy statements that recognize different

         13  systems deliver substantially equivalent credible

         14  outcomes. The procurement policies that have been

         15  recently adopted by major retailers and publishers

         16  are inclusive in nature, these companies include 84

         17  lumber, payless cash ways, Minards, Wycks Lumber,

         18  Home Base, Masco Cabinets, McCoys, Pelham Windows

         19  and Doors, Hallmark, L.L. Bean, AOL, Time Warner and

         20  others.

         21                 These companies recognize a variety

         22  of certification systems in their purchasing

         23  policies including the SFI.

         24                 A note on chain of custody. It is

         25  simply an accounting system that tracks wood flow
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          2  from the forest to the consumer. Chain of custody is

          3  an attractive concept but one that is extremely

          4  difficult in the US context. The strict FSC chain of

          5  custody requirement is the primary reason that FSC

          6  has not been widely adopted by US private

          7  landowners, both industrial and non-industrial. In

          8  its strictest form, chain and custody for most

          9  sawmills and paper mills is not feasible in the US.

         10  These mills depend on hundreds if not thousands of

         11  small non-industrial landowners, each year for their

         12  fiber supply. Tracking the products back to the on

         13  individual land-owners properties on this scale is

         14  simply not workable from a logistic standpoint.

         15                 The mechanisms for large scale

         16  certification of the 10 million US landowners that

         17  own 60 percent of the commercial forest land in the

         18  US do not yet exist.

         19                 The SFI program was designed with

         20  this in mind and built around the realities of the

         21  US land ownership patterns. So, what would this bill

         22  as currently written send, in terms of a message?

         23  That the wood from 10 million non-industrial

         24  land-owners in the US isn't good enough for New York

         25  City? That the wood coming from 66,000 certified
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          2  tree farmers, including 2,200 in New York isn't good

          3  enough? That wood from Poland, Sweden, the UK,

          4  Bolivia and Brazil is preferred, that's where 80

          5  percent of the FSC forests are located worldwide.

          6                 I don't believe that is the intent of

          7  the Council. I believe the intent of the Council is

          8  to promote sustainable forestry on all forest lands.

          9                 And I urge the City Council to amend

         10  780-A to be more inclusive and to recognize that

         11  there are different approaches to managing chain and

         12  custody in the supply chain.

         13                 Thank you all for the opportunity to

         14  comment.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Could you just

         17  tell me a few of who the 25 conservation groups are?

         18                 MR. VIRGA: The Isaac Walton League

         19  Conservation Fund, Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Rocky Mountain

         21  what?

         22                 MR. VIRGA: Rocky Mountain Elk

         23  Foundation.

         24                 National Fish and Wildlife

         25  Federation, Ducks Unlimited, Society of American
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          2  Foresters, I can get you the list.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I would

          4  appreciate that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you

          6  very much. Thank you for your comments.

          7                 Okay, our last panel will consist of

          8  Frank Sheridan, from the International Wood Products

          9  Association, Audrey Troise, International Wood

         10  Production Association. Bridget Shea, also

         11  International Wood Products Association. Jimmy

         12  Purwonegoro, from the Indonesian Woodworking

         13  Association. Dani Pitogo, same group, and Ginaptra

         14  -- I give up. It looks like Iketutkaler, the

         15  Indonesian Wood Panel Association.

         16                 Why don't the three who are up there

         17  go now and then we will bring up the other three,

         18  that way we can just kind of break it up so we have

         19  enough room.

         20                 Hang on a second, I have to swear you

         21  in. If you could all raise your right hands, please.

         22  And do you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth

         23  and nothing but the truth?

         24                 MS. SHEA: I do.

         25                 MR. SHERIDAN: I do.
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          2                 MS. TROISE: I do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, state your

          4  name and your title and then please proceed.

          5                 MS. SHEA: Good morning. My name is

          6  Bridgit Shea, I am with the International Wood

          7  Products Association, I am manager of Government

          8  Affairs.

          9                 Let me preface my comments by saying

         10  my testimony was written on the amended bill, we did

         11  not see the new amendments until this morning. But

         12  most of my points still remain valid, because

         13  although FSC is not named in the new amended bill,

         14  the chain of custody and the third-party auditing as

         15  it applies to developing countries in their emerging

         16  certification systems, it would only be FSC that

         17  would be able to qualify under this new legislation.

         18                 IWPA is still opposed to this bill as

         19  written, and some of the reasons include that this

         20  is a piecemeal approach, this bill does not provide

         21  a comprehensive approach to achieving sustainable

         22  forest management, especially for rainforests.

         23                 For example, it does not restrict

         24  City purchases of coffee, chocolate, bananas,

         25  oranges or orange juice, yet these commodities are
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          2  grown and harvested on rainforest land that are and

          3  continue to be clearcut to support these intensive

          4  agricultural endeavors. We suggest that the City

          5  Council hold these items to the same level of

          6  accountability as the forest products industry.

          7                 This bill hurts small business. Small

          8  businesses supply the forest products industry and

          9  this bill would cut them out of the bidding process

         10  at the produced or in retail level. You will find

         11  large landowners and corporations that are that are

         12  certified under FSC or other certification systems.

         13                 The mom and pop companies in New York

         14  City, New York State, the United States and overseas

         15  cannot afford FSC certification. This bill provides

         16  no guarantee. Certification does not guarantee

         17  sustainable forest management, certification can

         18  serve as an audit of work already being done toward

         19  improved forest management. A lack of certification,

         20  however, does not mean there is a lack of quality

         21  forest management.

         22                 This legislation discriminations

         23  against lesser developed countries.

         24                 A spin of the globe which showed that

         25  the majority of certified forests are in the
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          2  developed north. FSC certification is a process only

          3  afforded by the privileged. The World Wildlife

          4  Foundation, and World Bank Alliance in its annual

          5  report recognizes that forest certification is a

          6  relatively new concept and many countries do not

          7  have the policy and technical infrastructure in

          8  place to utilize independent certification on a wide

          9  scale.

         10                 This legislation still creates a

         11  monopoly for developing countries. It still is

         12  FSC-dominated, and FSC is a marketing scheme, as are

         13  most forest certification systems. As a creature of

         14  the marketplace, it, too, is subject to difficult

         15  bottom line choices that may clash with its higher

         16  mission.

         17                 We site as an example of a very

         18  recent announcement the Board of Directors of FSC is

         19  re-evaluating its percentage-based claims on

         20  on-product label policies.

         21                 FSC says, and I quote, "to maintain

         22  viable in the marketplace and to be attractive to a

         23  wider range of potential chain of custody

         24  manufacturers, FSC must quickly increase the market

         25  penetration of its trademark label.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 It is therefore imperative that we

          3  make it as easy as possible for chain of custody

          4  certificate holders to use FSC trademark while

          5  maintaining the integrity of on-product claims.

          6                 I also state that FSC is not without

          7  conflict of interest. Let me quote again from the

          8  consumer union, which points out that some members

          9  of the General Assembly of the FSC do have a vested

         10  interest in the products that are certified and have

         11  voting rights on FSC standard making decisions. This

         12  means that the voting authority of FSC has conflicts

         13  of interest and is not completely independent from

         14  financial interests in products being certified by

         15  FSC. In addition, some General Assembly members

         16  actively participate in promoting FSC certified

         17  products to national markets.

         18                 I am going to close that, this bill

         19  constitutes a ban on tropical wood for most

         20  developing countries. If it looks like a restrain of

         21  trade action, walks like a restraint of trade action

         22  and talks like a restraint of trade action; it will

         23  shut down tropical wood for the New York City

         24  market.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          3                 Next.

          4                 MS. TROISE: Audrey Troise, President

          5  and owner of William G. Moore and Son, Incorporated,

          6  which is a New York-based company supplying the City

          7  with everything from timber to railroad ties, lumber

          8  and et cetera.

          9                 Incidently, we also sell the City on

         10  recycled materials.

         11                 I have covered the problems from the

         12  standpoint of producing mills in my letters and

         13  e-mail and the previous testimony, but I would like

         14  to focus now on the impact to the City.

         15                 I am not 100 percent sure of the

         16  total responsibility of the Council, but I believe

         17  that the Council is supposed to serve the City of

         18  New York in the best manner.

         19                 The US government believes that using

         20  pressure-treated materials in the areas of fish and

         21  marine life are detrimental.

         22                 There are many tests being performed

         23  and much controversy over this, but the City of New

         24  York Department of Transportation know for a fact

         25  that they get the longest life for their docks and
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          2  moores from Greenheart, which is naturally resistant

          3  to marine borer and has a natural flex that can

          4  handle the heavy City ferries.

          5                 Staten Island Ferry was built in

          6  1950, and rehabilitated in 1987. Your boardwalks, to

          7  the best of my knowledge, have never had to be

          8  replaced where the tropical hardwood was used

          9  initially.

         10                 What would your construction costs

         11  have been if you had to replace all of these

         12  projects every ten to 15 years, or even in a 20 to

         13  25-year period? What about your doors, school desks,

         14  mill work, et cetera, where tropical wood lasts two

         15  to three times as long?

         16                 The cost to the City just to oversee

         17  a law of this nature will be enormous. I note the

         18  change for waivers which I have seen this morning.

         19  This is going to be an additional cost to the City

         20  because every project is going to have to be looked

         21  at on its merit, and who is going to issue the

         22  waivers?

         23                 In addition, because certified wood

         24  is more expensive and not readily available, I

         25  believe you are not going to stay within your
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          2  budgets, not to mention the cost of perhaps losing

          3  funds when the material doesn't arrive on time and

          4  the contract or purchase order was budgeted into a

          5  previous year.

          6                 I have personally been involved in

          7  having to get things rushed to the City on June 30th

          8  because it needs to get into the prior budget, and

          9  it's just not going to happen if you specify

         10  certified wood, particularly with this chain of

         11  custody.

         12                 And this leaves opening for

         13  unscrupulous people in a chain of custody who are

         14  not really going to be able to get you what you

         15  need.

         16                 I foresee on contractor bids, the

         17  contractors adding additional money for delays. When

         18  bidding these contracts, it might not be chaos, but

         19  it is going to come close to it in many cases.

         20                 This bill will do the City and

         21  suppliers, such as ourselves, a great disservice,

         22  and we ask you to vote against the bill.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         25                 We are just pointing out that the
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          2  bill does have a price requirement, if it's too

          3  expensive.

          4                 MS. TROISE: Yes, I had written this

          5  prior to seeing your amendment.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Although we will

          7  have to say that we haven't seen that actually

          8  happen, that there does seem to be certified woods

          9  out there that seemed to be within the requirement,

         10  and, of course, those woods would -- those certified

         11  hard woods would last as long as the non-certified

         12  hardwood.

         13                 MS. TROISE: That's true, but I was

         14  personally involved in a project on Long Island,

         15  where the certified woods did not come in for a year

         16  and a half. They decided that they would do half of

         17  the project in certified and half of the project in

         18  non-certified. The supplier who quoted the job got

         19  both parts of the order and he got a very, very high

         20  profit out of the non-certified wood because he sold

         21  it all at the same price. And this is the types of

         22  things that I think the City is going to find

         23  themselves into.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         25                 MS. TROISE: And what about the
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          2  bidding process, where you need to have so many

          3  bidders?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, three.

          5                 MS. TROISE: There is not that many

          6  people selling certified woods.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: How does the State

          8  do it?

          9                 MS. TROISE: From the tropical

         10  hardwoods in particular.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         12                 Sir.

         13                 MR. SHERIDAN: My name is Frank

         14  Sheridan, I am a wood importer. I am also on the

         15  Board of Directors of the Harvard Forestry Fund that

         16  has planted one million trees on public land since

         17  1992, so I wear two hats.

         18                 There is little use of my repeating

         19  my previous testimony to the City Council. Suffice

         20  it to say that I believe this legislation to be

         21  irresponsible on two main points:

         22                 Number one, it will saddle the City

         23  Administration with a bureaucratic boondoggle which

         24  will have a myriad of attackers from both sides.

         25                 This will result in constant review
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          2  within each department and possibly ligatory

          3  challenges.

          4                 The expenses to New York City will be

          5  far beyond the actual product cost, which in and of

          6  itself is unknown, but it won't be cheap.

          7                 The fact that Councilman Miller does

          8  not know the cost increase percent is a ponderance.

          9  Councilman Miller has FSC flooring in his house, by

         10  his own admission, what premium did he pay?

         11                 I, as a resident of New York City,

         12  resent this open-ended addition to the budget --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I would be

         14  happy to answer that question, if it was a question.

         15  It is actually that the price that I paid was less

         16  than some maple flooring and more than other maple

         17  flooring, so I wouldn't actually be able to say that

         18  I did pay --

         19                 MR. SHERIDAN: But in the same quality

         20  what was the premium above?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I am not sure

         22  that it was a premium above the same quality. You

         23  know, there was different type of flooring, we

         24  examined a bunch of it, it seemed to be of similar

         25  quality to maple flooring that was actually more
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          2  expensive, and dependent upon the different --

          3                 MR. SHERIDAN: So there would be no

          4  additional cost?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: To me I did

          6  not feel there was a premium, no.

          7                 MR. SHERIDAN: Very interesting.

          8                 I as a resident of New York City

          9  resent this open addition to the budget, especially

         10  when we have far more pressing needs in education

         11  and law enforcement.

         12                 Number two: This legislation will not

         13  save one acre of forests from being cut down. The

         14  City Council refused an offer to research the

         15  situation in venues which would have provided real

         16  insight into the situation, possibly felt the

         17  subject was not important enough to send someone to

         18  the ITTO Conference in Cameroon. Maybe that is too

         19  far for someone to go for the truth about what is

         20  being done for tropical forests.

         21                 However, First Avenue and 47th Street

         22  is not far from City Hall or Councilman Miller's

         23  residence. There was, to my knowledge, not one City

         24  Council Member present at the United Nations Forest

         25  Forum, which took place in mid-June for a period of
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          2  two weeks.

          3                 The matter before the City Council

          4  was discussed extensively. Thus, the City Council,

          5  given the nature of their proposed legislation,

          6  should have been an observer during these sessions,

          7  and at the very least, procured the summary reports

          8  from each session.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I should point out

         10  that we would have sent someone had we been invited.

         11                 MR. SHERIDAN: You were invited.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I didn't know

         13  about it. My counsel didn't know about it.

         14                 MR. SHERIDAN: Excuse me, Councilman

         15  Freed, you told me we couldn't do it. I invited you,

         16  I offered to pay --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I never spoke to

         18  you.

         19                 MR. SHERIDAN: I spoke to you at the

         20  last hearing. I offered to pay for someone to go to

         21  the ITTO Conference.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Oh, well, we can't

         23  go to the Cameroon. No, I am saying that we were not

         24  aware of that hearing. My counsel would have

         25  attended it. Not in Cameroon, the one at the United
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          2  Nations.

          3                 MR. SHERIDAN: And the subject is

          4  before the City Council and you didn't know about

          5  it?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Tell us.

          7                 MR. SHERIDAN: That's an embarrassment

          8  to New York City. I'm sorry, that is a big

          9  embarrassment.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, actually we

         11  are sorry we weren't invited. You knew it was coming

         12  up in front of the Council --

         13                 MR. SHERIDAN: I am not trying to be

         14  confrontational. The reports are there, you can get

         15  them now. You can still get the summary reports.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Great.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Fine, we will get

         18  them.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: We will work

         20  on it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I am just pointing

         22  out that you said someone should have been there and

         23  it's an embarrassment, I am saying someone would

         24  have been there had we been invited.

         25                 MR. SHERIDAN: Someone could have went
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          2  to the ITTO Conference also. I invited you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: In Cameroon?

          4                 MR. SHERIDAN: I said I would pay for

          5  it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We don't usually

          7  accept those --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I mean, it

          9  sounds like the chair is interested in going to

         10  Cameroon, you should have a more specific invitation

         11  in the future.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I would have gone.

         13  Well, not this year.

         14                 MR. SHERIDAN: All right, Councilman

         15  Miller's Office. Only to get the information.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I'm not sure

         17  I'm going to travel to Cameroon at this time, but I

         18  certainly would appreciate a specific invitation.

         19                 MR. SHERIDAN: I can safely say that

         20  there are few residents of New York City more

         21  familiar with this subject than myself. The rhetoric

         22  presented in this bill is complete defiance of

         23  reality. The legislation is self-serving to its

         24  proponents. It will not only inflict an economic

         25  burden on New York City, but it is detrimental to
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          2  the very purpose it seeks to accomplish.

          3                 Furthermore, it matters not whether

          4  or not it names FSC in its text. In fact, the

          5  requirements are primarily that of FSC. FSC is not

          6  the all-knowing entity it seems to be. In fact, it

          7  now has come under attack from respected

          8  environmentalists who challenge the claims made by

          9  FSC certification. In fact, two showcase FSC

         10  certifications have come under attack as failing to

         11  really do what is claimed. I am personally

         12  acquainted with both these certified operations, and

         13  can tell you that the present objections are only

         14  the tip of the iceberg.

         15                 The recent upheaval in FSC management

         16  should be a warning sign to all concerned.

         17                 One other point is a clause within

         18  the legislation that refers to annual on-ground

         19  inspection.

         20                 I know of no certification to date

         21  that actually met this qualification in actuality.

         22  Maybe there are some, but was it a qualitative

         23  inspection or some eye watch? The City should look

         24  into this aspect as well.

         25                 Given all the above, this subject

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  needs more evaluation of facts and less attention to

          3  fictional rhetoric and claims.

          4                 There are many places the City

          5  Council can find information of a factual nature.

          6  The City Council should not turn a blind eye to

          7  these reputable wealths of factual knowledge prior

          8  to making a decision.

          9                 It should put forth an effort to

         10  determine the productive or negative impact of this

         11  legislation, equal to the nature of the subject in

         12  all aspects. Failure to do so would not only be

         13  irresponsible, but possibly foolhardy as well, if

         14  this proves to be a financial and effective fiasco.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. Great.

         17                 And the last panel, I will try to get

         18  the names right. Jimmy Purwonegoro, from the

         19  Indonesian Sawmills and Woodworking Association.

         20  Dani Pitojo. And Ginaptra Iketutkaler. I am sure I

         21  said those completely wrong.

         22                 Thank you. And I want to remind you,

         23  again, it is three minutes each, and you will hear

         24  the bell go off. So, when the bell goes off, please

         25  sum up.
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          2                 Great. Thank you very much. I welcome

          3  you here again. You have been very good about

          4  attending our meetings.

          5                 If you could raise your right hands,

          6  please, and if you will all swear to tell the truth,

          7  the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. PITOJO: Yes, I do.

          9                 MR. IKETUTKALER: I do.

         10                 MR. PUREWONGORO: I do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: State your name

         12  and position for the record, and please proceed.

         13                 MR. IKETUTKALER: Thank you. Good

         14  morning, Madam Chair. Nice to meet you again. My

         15  name is Iketutkaler. I am actually an Balinese, you

         16  may have heard already the Bali, the part of one

         17  island of Indonesia. So, I am here representing the

         18  Indonesian Wood Panel Association, and also around

         19  60 million people, Indonesian people, who are

         20  depending their livelihood on forestry.

         21                 We have provided complete testimony,

         22  but because there is fairly limited time I will

         23  highlight my testimony.

         24                 First, regarding the Indonesian

         25  Tropical Forest, we have 112.2 million acres of
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          2  natural forest covering around 56.7 percent of our

          3  total land area.  We are fully committed to

          4  maintaining this forest for as long as (unable to

          5  discern due to dialect in language.)

          6                 Based on the function of the forest,

          7  the social aspects, the ecological aspects, and the

          8  production or economical aspects, this 112.2 million

          9  acres classified becomes three categories. First, is

         10  what we call the production forest; the second is

         11  conservation forest, and the third is production

         12  forest.

         13                 The total of production and

         14  conservation forests is around 54 percent, for 54

         15  ha. This is totally closed for logging activities.

         16  So, this mainly for ecological policies for the

         17  function of our forest. The production forests is

         18  58.2 million ha, is for production and for

         19  economical policies, economical benefits for our

         20  national development.

         21                 Because forest (unable to discern due

         22  to dialect in language) is playing a very vital role

         23  in eradicating our poverty of our people, because

         24  forestry is mainly located in the remote area.

         25                 In the production forests we are
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          2  implementing what we call the system, selective of a

          3  distinct system, different than what you may know

          4  well here in America, what you call the clearcut

          5  system, but we in Indonesia have a selective system,

          6  whereas only commercial trees, commercial trees

          7  (unable to discern due to dialect of language.)

          8                 We have around three spaces in our

          9  forest, because the forest is very (unable to

         10  discern due to dialect in language). So, out of that

         11  only 44 wood spaces is commercially of benefit.

         12                 So, that's why we only do commercial

         13  trees. The non-commercial trees we left in the

         14  forest. So, we never make this a devastation. We

         15  never make this a clear cut. We never made it become

         16  bald like my head. No, we are still a forest, only

         17  there is degradation of the production forest.

         18                 To protect and to save this permanent

         19  forest, we call this protection and conservation

         20  forest and production forest we set as the permanent

         21  forest.

         22                 We have 27.8 million ha under the

         23  jurisdiction of the Department of Forestry to

         24  anticipate the rising demand of land for our

         25  national development.
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          2                 So, by this system we actually have

          3  already done, based on the responsible (unable to

          4  discern due to dialect in language.) Without paper

          5  called certificate or FSC certificate, we are

          6  penalized, all will penalize with a very distinct

          7  impact to our development and to our people.

          8                 The second thing to raise --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, I am going

         10  to try and sum up the last point.

         11                 MR. KETUTKALER: So, is it fair that

         12  we have managed the forest in a very responsible

         13  manner then penalized by this legislation, because

         14  the legislation cannot accept our wood without a

         15  sheet of paper called FSC certification? That's

         16  happened in the field actually.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         18                 MR. KETUTKALER: We can't continue a

         19  little bit?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There was a time

         21  limit and you have gone over the time limit.

         22                 MR. KETUTKALER: Maybe just, what is

         23  the impacts of this legislation? We noted that the

         24  impacts of this litigation was the ban, restriction

         25  and boycotts on the trade of tropical timber will
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          2  minimize the economic value of the production

          3  forests, and consequently will trigger the people go

          4  to the other livelihood by illegal logging by

          5  shifting cultivation and others.

          6                 The second, the supplying country

          7  would either sell or smuggle the timber elsewhere

          8  for a lower price and cut more trees to make up the

          9  shortfall.

         10                 The third, the legislation may

         11  undermine and frustrate the ongoing efforts to

         12  improve forest management in developing producing

         13  countries which badly need the revenue from their

         14  wood products export to finance National

         15  Development. And in the long run, it may responsible

         16  (sic) for tropical forest conversion.

         17                 The fourth, the legislation will

         18  motivate the use of other building material, such as

         19  aluminium, plastics and other substitutes which are

         20  actually intensive in processing them. So, they will

         21  add to air pollution.

         22                 The last point I want to raise, we

         23  actually will then go to the certification, but we

         24  are facing problems that for certification we need

         25  fairly big money to get certification, and we have
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          2  also to train people for that. We recognize that

          3  this certification is a new concept, so that is one

          4  problem also we are facing in the developing

          5  countries.

          6                 Thank you, Mademoiselle.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          8                 MR. PITOJO: Thank you, Madam Chair,

          9  and distinguished members of the Council. Good

         10  afternoon, it is now already. My name is Dani

         11  Pitojo. I represent also Abkindo (phonetic), and I

         12  am going to speak to supplement the testimony of my

         13  colleague Mr. Ketutkaler, but from a little bit

         14  different perspective.

         15                 First I think I would like to

         16  illustrate a little bit briefly about Indonesia.

         17  Indonesia, consisting of 17,000 islands, the stretch

         18  is between from east to west or from west to east is

         19  like the United States but two-thirds consisting of

         20  water, this is the situation and condition of

         21  Indonesia.

         22                 Then let us look to the fact about

         23  how poor our country of people is. I would like to

         24  quote from the Asia Week Magazine, which I just

         25  read, the edition of July 27th.
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          2                 In population we are number four in

          3  the world, there is 212 million people, whereas the

          4  United States it says here 282.3 million people. But

          5  how poor is our people? Let us look from the GNP per

          6  capita.

          7                 Indonesia, 692 US dollars, 692.

          8  Whereas, United States $35,277. It's a big

          9  comparison, just to give us the picture. And what is

         10  the export earnings within the 12 months? Indonesia

         11  only 66.2 billion US dollars.  United States, 773

         12  billion US dollars. This will tell us about the

         13  situation, condition of Indonesia. So, by

         14  understanding these things, these situations, these

         15  conditions, I think it is easy for us to establish

         16  the understanding, the thing that you would like to

         17  ask us in our testimony.

         18                 When I was in Japan last July, I was

         19  reading in one of the newspapers in Japan precisely,

         20  or namely, the Daily Yom Urie (phonetic), it was on

         21  the 13th of July. It was a very interesting thing

         22  that I would like also to inform to this meeting, to

         23  this Council. It is not that I have negative

         24  intentions, it is the fact, it is about the

         25  greenhouse emissions, the C02 emissions. The total
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          2  global emissions in 1990, 5.79 billion pounds carbon

          3  equivalent. But in 1997, increased to 6.27 billion

          4  pounds carbon equivalent. Who are the producers? I

          5  think also from here we can understand that in 1990,

          6  United States produce, represent 22.9 billion --

          7  22.9 percent, whereas in 1997, US produce 23.8

          8  percent of the carbon C02 emissions.

          9                 Who are the next? Europe, 15.1, and

         10  Russia 11., and so forth and so forth, I don't have

         11  to go in detail due to the time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, I am going to

         13  have to ask you to sum up also.

         14                 MR. PITOJO: Okay, I will get a copy.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: We agree with you.

         17                 MR. PITOJO: And then in the

         18  testimony, we have attached two important documents,

         19  in the testimony just now. One is the letter from

         20  our Ministry of Forestry, from that letter, which I

         21  think distinguished members can go in detail later,

         22  it was very clear, it is a manifestation of our

         23  implementation of the sustainable forest management.

         24  What we have to do everything when we want to, cut

         25  the forest when we want to, everything there in
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          2  detail being guided, arranged, also the documents

          3  that we have to have, so in short, that we have

          4  already the sustainable forest processes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

          6                 MR. PITOJO: Can I go to the last one?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Very short.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Another one

          9  of the documents, very important document, it's a

         10  letter from ITTO. I don't have to inform on ITTO,

         11  that is the United National Conference on Trade and

         12  Development, the members consisting of 57 all

         13  together, they are consisting of the 26 consuming

         14  countries, including United States, and 31 producing

         15  countries. In the letter we can read later on that

         16  what in the organization is doing to promote the

         17  sustainable forest management and over there also,

         18  unfortunately we don't have the time, that surely I

         19  can point all the highlights, what we have done in

         20  the sustainable forest management. Indonesia was

         21  mentioned, that one of the six countries that is

         22  also considered to be in very far advance in the

         23  sustainable forest management.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. PURWONEGORO: Thank you. My name

          3  is Jimmy Purwonegoro, as president of Indonesian

          4  Sawmill and Wood Working Association.

          5                 Honorable Kathryn Freed, Madam

          6  Chairperson, and Council Members, on behalf of ISA,

          7  we would like to thank you for this opportunity to

          8  orally submit our testimony.

          9                 Currently, our members are more than

         10  1,600, most of which are medium and small

         11  enterprises.

         12                 Eighty percent of them do not have

         13  any forest concessions where the raw materials are

         14  supplied from forest concessions managed under the

         15  principles of sustainable forest management through

         16  a free trade mechanism.

         17                 This sector provides more than 1.5

         18  million job opportunities. Commonly, an Indonesian

         19  family consists of one wife and two children, and,

         20  therefore, the total number of the people depending

         21  their lives on this sector are about 6 million. Most

         22  of them are living in surrounding forest and rural

         23  areas.

         24                 The raw material supply to the Wood

         25  Working Industries has always been our concern,
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          2  therefore, in 1980s, the Indonesian Ministry of

          3  Forestry has set up a regulation system named

          4  Indonesian Wood Distribution System in order to

          5  ensure the legality and well-managed resource.

          6                 In implementing the system, the logs

          7  transported to the industries should be covered by a

          8  legal letter of logs or sawn-timber clarifying that

          9  it comes from the forest concessions who owned the

         10  harvesting license from the government.

         11                 Before it is transferred to the

         12  industries, they have to pay reforestation fund and

         13  forest product levy. In following the system, the

         14  industries are implementing the process of the

         15  (unable to discern due to dialect in language) from

         16  legal and sustainable resource.

         17                 The Indonesian wood working

         18  enterprises recognize the importance of

         19  certification system. However, to achieve the goal,

         20  the Indonesian companies still need an appropriate

         21  time, especially for small scales wood working

         22  companies in order to be able to pay certification

         23  process, which is very expensive. On the other hand,

         24  the labeled wood products do not receive any premium

         25  from developed countries.
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          2                 If the "good wood bill" on tropical

          3  timber products would be really applied, a serious

          4  direct social impacts born by our country,

          5  especially in sustaining our tropical forest

          6  resources. Unemployment rate will be increased

          7  drastically and will engage destruction of the

          8  forest through illegal logging activities and

          9  natural forest conversion for the agricultural

         10  purposes.

         11                 Moreover, the foreign exchange

         12  earning from this sector will be reducing and will

         13  impact on our financial position to manage our

         14  forest sustainably, hence, this will disturb the

         15  plans of government to recover from economic crisis.

         16                 It is our gratitude to be here to

         17  express our concern on behalf of the community of

         18  Indonesia through the opportunity of conveying the

         19  testimony.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Thank you for, once again, testifying

         24  before us. Thank you.

         25                 Now, we have one last person after
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          2  this panel; and that is, Kevin S. King, from the

          3  Empire State Forest Products Association.

          4                 Okay, if you can raise your right

          5  hand, please.

          6                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. KING: I do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Great.

         10                 Just state your name and position for

         11  the record and then please proceed.

         12                 MR. KING: My name is Kevin King, I am

         13  the Executive Vice President of the Empire State

         14  Forest Products Association.

         15                 Madam Chair, members of the Council,

         16  it's a great pleasure to be here this morning. As I

         17  look at my watch, it is more going on this

         18  afternoon.

         19                 I will be brief with my comments,

         20  both out of necessity and because we are on the

         21  clock. My stomach is grumbling a little bit and I

         22  think a lot has been said already that was intended,

         23  and I was planning to testify as well.

         24                 I do think I've got some new thoughts

         25  or ideas to add to the record, and I would like to
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          2  focus on those a little bit, if I could.

          3                 I am here today representing the

          4  Upstate forest landowners in New York State, and the

          5  Upstate -- rather I shouldn't limit myself, we are

          6  statewide and do have members down in long Island

          7  and within the Metropolitan area as well, but the

          8  statewide manufacturers wood using businesses

          9  throughout the state.

         10                 Again, I would like to talk about and

         11  focus a little bit on how this bill, what kind of

         12  implications this bill may have, the kind of

         13  activities that we have in the upstate, throughout

         14  New York State area, and our forest management

         15  practices, and a little bit about the nature of the

         16  forest in New York State.

         17                 In doing that, I would like to refer

         18  you to the back last page of my testimony where we

         19  have provided you with a little bit of a highlight

         20  summary, if you will, of the forest land area in New

         21  York State.

         22                 New York is a heavily forested state,

         23  we have over 62 percent of the State and forests

         24  covered. We have a fairly significant forest

         25  industry in this state, it is about the fifth or
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          2  sixth largest manufacturing industry in this state

          3  as well. A little bit different than some of the

          4  focus on some of the building material, and we

          5  provide a lot of the quality furniture, hardwood

          6  flooring, the nature of the forest resources in the

          7  state is very much a hardwood resource, so that

          8  means that the kinds of materials that would be

          9  affected by this bill largely are in the flooring,

         10  furniture, millwork moldings, the higher end

         11  products. Those are things we provide and produce

         12  here locally in New York State and would be impacted

         13  by this bill.

         14                 But we have a heavily forested state,

         15  that 62 percent of the state is covered. Of those

         16  lands I broke down for you a little bit in terms of

         17  the various certification programs that are

         18  prevalent in this state, Tree Farm being far and

         19  away the largest certification program in New York,

         20  that reflects the nature of the ownership patterns

         21  in this state. We have a tremendous number of

         22  non-industrial-forest owners, small land owners and

         23  such, over 2,200 of those individuals are

         24  participating in a tree farm program, we probably

         25  sponsor, along with the Department of Environmental
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          2  Conservation, that represents nearly a million and a

          3  half acres of land.

          4                 The Forest Stewardship Council

          5  Certification Program totals just over 800,000

          6  acres. The lion's share of that, I should note, is

          7  in public ownership in the state forestry

          8  forestation areas, and the sustainable forestry

          9  initiative has 727,000 acres certified, a

         10  significant portion of which is third-party verified

         11  as well, and ISO 14001 has nearly a quarter of a

         12  million acres enrolled in this program in New York.

         13                 You can get the impression that I

         14  came to testify, and in the interest of

         15  inclusiveness, and would encourage, and I think you

         16  have made a lot of changes in the bill already that

         17  move in that direction, I want to further reinforce

         18  that that would be extremely helpful for our forest

         19  landowners and businesses in New York State. I think

         20  we are all concerned and many of those interests are

         21  concentrated in the Adirondack and Catskills, like

         22  the residents in New York City yourselves, and the

         23  remainder of us have a tremendous amount of public

         24  interest in what goes on in those regions of the

         25  State, they provide a lot of recreational
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          2  opportunities, they provide a tremendous amount of

          3  wildlife habitat, wood products, and clean drinking

          4  water, as was testified to earlier, as well. There

          5  is a tremendous amount of public interest vested in

          6  those areas, and a lot of the forest land in the

          7  state that is involved would be impacted in those

          8  cares.

          9                 So, I would encourage you to think in

         10  terms of inclusiveness,, the third-party -- the

         11  chain of custody requirement is problematic, as

         12  others have identified as well, and, again, largely

         13  because of the nature of our ownership pattern here

         14  in New York State. We have half a million

         15  non-industrial forest land-owners that own this

         16  resource base that provide these kind of raw

         17  materials, it's near impossible to be able to

         18  identify and source separate each one of those

         19  individual land-owners. I think the goals can be

         20  accomplished.

         21                 I thank you for the opportunity. The

         22  focus is greatly appreciated, and the amendments are

         23  moving in the right direction.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 And I believe that brings this

          4  meeting to a close. Great.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:10 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 7th day of August 2001.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            92

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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